
  

 

 

 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday 12 September 2017 at 6.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Tunbridge Wells, Kent TN1 1RS 

 
 

 

Borough Council Representatives:  Councillors Barrington-King (Vice-Chairman), Hamilton, 
Horwood (Chairman), Lewis-Grey, Neve, Nuttall, 
Ms Palmer and Podbury 

Independent Members:  Mrs Hough, Mr Quigley and Mr Shiels 

Parish/Town Council Representatives: Councillors Coleman and Henshaw 

Quorum: 3 Members, to include at least one independent member 

 
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
Apologies for absence as reported at the meeting. 

2   Declarations of Interest   
To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on the agenda. 
 
For any advice on declarations of interest, please contact the Monitoring Officer. 

3   Notification of Visiting Members wishing to speak (in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 18)   
Members should indicate which item(s) they wish to speak on and the nature of their 
concern/question/request for clarification. 

4   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 1 - 6) 
The Chairman will move that the minutes of the previous meeting, dated 25 July 2017, be 
signed as a correct record. The only issue relating to the minutes which can be discussed is 
their accuracy. 
 
In accordance with Council Meetings Procedure 16.1, the Chairman will sign the minutes of 
today’s proceedings at the next scheduled meeting. 

5   Report of Head of Legal Partnership and Monitoring Officer   

(A)   Update on Complaints Received Under the Members' Code of Conduct   
Since the June meeting, there have been no further complaints received and there are 
no outstanding complaints under consideration.  

6   Report of Director of Finance, Policy and Development   

(A)   Strategic Risk Review (Pages 7 - 22) 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 
 
 
 

(B)   Independent Review of the Civic Development Project (Pages 23 - 26) 
(C)   External Auditor Appointment - Update (Pages 27 - 32) 

7   Future Work Programme  (Pages 33 - 34) 

8   Urgent Business   
The Democratic Services Officer will advise if there have been any urgent items of business 
which have arisen for the Committee’s consideration since publication of the agenda. 

9   Date of Next Meeting -  Tuesday 21 November 2017 at 6.30pm   

 

 
 
Mike McGeary Town Hall 
Democratic Services Officer ROYAL TUNBRIDGE WELLS 
mike.mcgeary@tunbridgewells.gov.uk Kent   TN1 1RS 
 Tel:  01892 554105 (direct line) 
 

 

mod.gov app – go paperless 
 

Easily download, annotate and keep all committee paperwork on your 

mobile device using the mod.gov app – all for free! 
 

Visit   www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp   for details.  

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp


 
 

 
 
 
 

All visitors wishing to attend a public meeting at the Town Hall between the hours of 9.00am and 
5.00pm should report to reception via the side entrance in Monson Way.  After 5pm, access will be via 
the front door on the corner of Crescent Road and Mount Pleasant Road, except for disabled access 
which will continue by use of an 'out of hours' button at the entrance in Monson Way. 
 
Notes on Procedure 
 
(1)  A list of background papers appears at the end of each report, where appropriate, pursuant to the 

Local Government Act 1972, section 100D(i). 
 
(2) Items marked * will be the subject of recommendations by the Committee to Full Council.  
 
(3) Members seeking factual information about agenda items are requested to contact the 

appropriate Service Manager prior to the meeting. 
 
(4) Members of the public and other stakeholders are required to register with the Democratic 

Services Officer if they wish to speak on an agenda item at a meeting.  Places are limited to a 
maximum of four speakers per item.  The deadline for registering to speak is 4.00 pm the last 
working day before the meeting.  Each speaker will be given a maximum of 3 minutes to address 
the Committee. 

 
(5) Please note that this meeting may be recorded or filmed by the Council for administrative 

purposes.  Any other third party may also record or film meetings, unless exempt or confidential 
information is being considered, but are requested as a courtesy to others to give notice of this to 
the Democratic Services Officer before the meeting. The Council is not liable for any third party 
recordings. 

 
Further details are available on the website (www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk) or from Democratic 
Services. 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 If you require this information in another format, 
please contact us on 01892 526121 

 

 Accessibility into and within the Town Hall - In response to the 
requirements of the Disability Discrimination Act 1995, the Council has 
provided the following features to overcome physical barriers to access.   

 There is a wheelchair accessible lift by the main staircase, giving access to the 
first floor where the committee rooms are situated.  There are a few steps 
leading to the Council Chamber itself but there is a platform chairlift in the foyer. 

 

 Hearing Loop System - The Council Chamber and all the Committee Rooms 
have been equipped with hearing induction loop systems.  The Council 
Chamber also has a fully equipped audio-visual system. 

 

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 25 July 2017 
 

Present: Councillor Tracy Moore (Chairman) 
Councillors Barrington-King (Vice-Chairman), Hamilton, Lewis-Grey, Nuttall, 

Ms Palmer and Podbury, Independent Members Mr Quigley and Mr Shiels and  
Town Councillor Henshaw 

 
Officers in Attendance:  Rich Clarke (Head of Audit Partnership), Lee Colyer (Director of 
Finance, Policy and Development), Jane Fineman (Head of Finance and Procurement), 
Karen Fossett (Head of Planning Services) and Mike McGeary (Democratic Services Officer) 
 
Other Members in Attendance: Councillors Reilly and Simmons  
 
Others in Attendance: Ade Oyerinde and Darren Wells (both of Grant Thornton) 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
AG20/17 
 

Apologies for absence were reported from Councillor Neve and from 
Independent Member Mrs Hough. 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
AG21/17 
 

There were no declarations of interest made, within the provisions of the 
Code of Conduct for Members. 
 

NOTIFICATION OF VISITING MEMBERS WISHING TO SPEAK (IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 18) 
 
AG22/17 
 

There were no other members of the Council who had registered their wish to 
address the Committee, within the provisions of Council Meetings Procedure 
Rule 18. 
 

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
AG23/17 
 

The minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee dated 27 
June 2017 were submitted. 
 
While there were no issues of accuracy raised, Rich Clarke – the Head of 
Audit Partnership – was asked to update the Committee on the appointment 
of the authority’s external auditors from 2018. 
 
Mr Clarke reported that, as per the timetable set out by Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited, local authorities would be advised within the next two 
weeks of their selected external auditors.  
 
As previously reported, Mr Clarke said that local authorities would have the 
opportunity to object to the appointment, with the final confirmation taking 
place by the end of November. He added that he would provide further details 
at the September meeting of the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Audit and Governance Committee 
dated 27 June 2017 be approved as a correct record. 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



2 

 
 

STRATEGIC RISK REPORT 
 
AG24/17 
 

Lee Colyer, the Director of Finance, Policy and Development, presented a 
risk management report, which described the authority’s arrangements for 
managing strategic risk. The report provided an update on the evaluated 
threat level, as well as the controls in place, for each of the 10 risks identified. 
 
Karen Fossett, the Head of Planning Services, was introduced to the 
Committee. Mrs Fossett was the ‘officer risk owner’ for scenarios 1 (‘Cinema 
site remains undeveloped’) and 8 (‘Inspector decision which challenges 
housing target v. housing supply’).  
 
On risk scenario 1, Mrs Fossett advised that a planning application for the 
redevelopment of the cinema site had now been made, adding that it had 
been validated and was now out to consultation. Mrs Fossett added that it 
was expected that the application would be submitted to the Planning 
Committee in September or October and might, according to the length of 
scheduled meetings at that stage, require a special meeting to be arranged. 
 
Mrs Fossett said that, if planning consent were granted, she would expect the 
developers to then prepare their tendering procedures ready for a start on site 
either at the end of 2018 or early 2019. 
 
With risk scenario 8, Mrs Fossett said that the second ‘call for sites’ had 
resulted in 171 areas of land being put forward for possible development. She 
added that planning officers would be evaluating the appropriateness of each 
site in a process which would take some months to complete, before 
presenting a report to members in the Spring of next year; Mrs Fossett 
advised that this would lead to the drafting of suitable Local Plan policies for 
discussion at that stage. 
 
There were no questions for Mrs Fossett on these two risk scenarios and no 
issues raised on any other of the elements of the report. 
 
RESOLVED – That the risk management report and arrangements for 
managing strategic risk be noted. 
 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT AND AUDIT FINDINGS 2016/17 
 
AG25/17 
 

Further to minute AG12/17, Jane Fineman, the Head of Finance and 
Procurement, presented the draft Financial Report for 2016/17. Mrs Fineman 
advised that there had been only minor amendments made to the document 
which had been seen by the Committee at their June meeting, to take 
account of comments made by members at that stage. 
 
Mrs Fineman also drew attention to a proposal that, in future years, the draft 
Financial Report be e-mailed to Committee members in June, rather than a 
meeting being held. She stressed that this would still enable Committee 
members to view – and challenge where appropriate – the draft details, 
before the July meeting where formal approval would be sought. 
 
Mrs Fineman said that a local elector had raised an objection to the accounts 
during the public inspection period. She added that, in practical terms, this 
meant that while the Committee was still being asked to approve the draft 
Statement of Accounts and the Annual Governance Statement, the Council’s 
external auditors could issue an audit opinion but not formally conclude the 

Page 2

Agenda Item 4



3 

 
 

value-for-money audit and certificate until they had completed their 
investigation into the objection. 
 
Darren Wells, a Director of Grant Thornton (the external auditors) said that 
they expected to issue an unqualified audit opinion, adding that they had not 
identified any adjustments affecting the authority’s financial position. 
 
Mr Wells added that the objection raised was a claim that the authority had 
followed a flawed process in its decision-making in relation to the proposed 
civic development. He added that Grant Thornton’s investigation into that 
objection meant that the value-for-money element of their report could not yet 
be concluded. 
 
The Chairman asked for confirmation that, as far as Grant Thornton’s audit of 
the Council’s accounts was concerned, there were no issues of concern, in 
other words the objection raised did not alter that audit opinion. Mr Wells 
confirmed that this was the case. 
 
Both Mr Quigley and Councillor Podbury raised concerns that it was not clear 
how the formal objection made impacted on the Committee’s ability to 
approve the draft Statement of Accounts. Councillor Podbury suggested that 
it might have been helpful to the Committee to have had sight of the letter of 
formal objection. 
 
Mr Wells said he was satisfied that the objection submitted would not impact 
on the accuracy of the financial statement, merely the value-for-money 
conclusion. He added that, if the Committee approved the Statement of 
Accounts, Grant Thornton were on a position to proceed with their unqualified 
audit opinion. 
 
Lee Colyer, the Director of Finance, Policy and Development, said that he 
would be happy for Committee members to have a copy of the formal 
objection. First, however, he provided some context, in which he said that the 
basis of the objection was the way in which the Council had determined the 
Great Hall car park to be the selected site for the new theatre.  
 
Mr Colyer firmly believed that, while an elector had the right to challenge that 
decision, raising a formal objection to the draft accounts was not the right 
place for those concerns to be pursued. He felt that discussion on this matter 
could have been better carried out through more effective engagement in the 
continuing decision-making taking place on the civic development. 
 
Mr Shiels agreed with this view; it had no bearing on the accounts, he added. 
He wondered if the language used within the narrative section of the draft 
accounts might have contributed towards the objection being made, 
specifically on page 22 of the agenda, where it stated that “The Council has 
embarked on an ambitious property development programme to secure 
continued growth for the Borough…” 
 
Although it was acknowledged that this was a statement of fact, it was agreed 
to amend this to read “The Council has commenced a property development 
programme …”. 
 
Councillor Barrington-King also felt that the objection made was at the wrong 
stage in the civic development decision-making process. He added that, while 
it was right that the objection had to be formally investigated, the context 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



4 

 
 

within which it had been made had to be borne in mind. 
 
Mr Shiels sought clarification on a point under audit regulation IS32: he asked 
for confirmation that what was being investigated was a matter of disclosure 
and not a change to the Council’s liabilities within the accounts. Mr Wells 
confirmed that this view was correct. 
 
Councillor Hamilton asked whether it was felt that the objector understood the 
nature of their formal objection. Mr Colyer advised that the grounds upon 
which the objection was made complied with the relevant protocol. He felt, 
therefore, that the authority had no alternative other than to deal with the 
issue fairly and – through Grant Thornton – independently. He reiterated that 
it was perfectly in order for the Committee to continue to approve the draft 
accounts presented to them. 
 
Mr Shiels raised one further point: he acknowledged that the formal 
investigation of the objection would result in additional costs for the Council. 
He asked if these extra costs could be set out separately. The Chairman 
confirmed that there would be a cost to the Council and to local taxpayers, 
adding that this must be transparent and clearly identifiable. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
(1) That Grant Thornton’s Audit Findings Report, set out in Appendix B to 

the report, be noted; 
 
(2) That the draft Statement of Accounts and the Annual Governance 

Statement, set out in Appendix A to the report, be approved; 
 
(3) That the Chairman and the Director of Finance, Policy & Development 

be authorised to sign a Letter of Representation based on Appendix A 
and the Audit Findings Report; and 

 
(4) That the Committee agrees to receive a draft Statement of Accounts for 

2017/18 by email for comment and questions by mid-June 2018 and 
that the draft Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 
for the 2017/18 accounts are approved at the July meeting of the 
Committee, to enable the accounts to be signed by 31 July 2018. 

 
FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME 
 
AG26/17 
 

The Committee’s work programme was presented for members’ information.     
 
RESOLVED – That the work programme be noted. 
 

URGENT BUSINESS 
 
AG27/17 
 

The Democratic Services Officer advised that there were no additional items 
for the Committee’s consideration which had arisen since the publication of 
the agenda. 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
AG28/17 
 

It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would take place on 
Tuesday 12 September at 6.30pm. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



5 

 
 

 
 NOTE: The meeting concluded at 7.00 pm. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Audit & Governance 
Committee 

12 September 
2017 

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting? Yes 

 

Strategic Risk Review 
 

Final Decision-Maker Audit & Governance Committee 

Portfolio Holder(s)  All 

Lead Director  Lee Colyer – Director of Finance, Policy and 
Development  

Head of Service Jane Clarke – Head of Policy & Governance 

Lead Officer/Report Author Lee Colyer – Director of Finance, Policy and 
Development  

Classification Non-Exempt 

Wards affected All 

  

This report makes the following recommendations to the final decision-maker: 
 

1. That the Committee notes the risk management report and arrangements for 
managing strategic risk. 

 

  

This report relates to the following Five Year Plan Key Objectives: 

 A Prosperous Borough 

 A Green Borough 

 A Confident Borough 

 

This report is concerned with the internal control and governance of the Council.  Successful 
controls and effective governance are a crucial underpinning for all corporate priorities. 

  

Timetable  

Meeting Date 

Management Board 30 August 2017 

Audit and Governance Committee 12 September 2017 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6(A)



 

Strategic Risk Review 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report sets out the strategic risks identified by the Council and currently 

being managed and tracked by senior management.  The report provides a 
current update on the evaluated threat level and controls in place for each risk 
issue. 

 

 
2. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The risks included in the report were initially developed in a risk management 

workshop facilitated by Zurich Management Services on 10 December 2013, 
with the risks being formally adopted by Cabinet on 16 May 2014.  Since that 
time, risk owners have kept the risks and controls under review with periodic 
reporting both to the Cabinet and the Audit & Governance Committee.   

 
2.2 Following the award of a new insurance contract a strategic risk management 

review will be undertaken. 
 

2.3 The Council’s Management Board periodically reviews the risks identified along 
with the risk owners.   

 

2.4 Risk owners (managers) for certain risks are invited to attend the Audit and 
Governance Committee meetings to outline the Council’s approach to 
managing their particular risk(s). For this Committee meeting, members will be 
able to examine the risks owned by David Candlin, Head of Economic 
Development and Property, namely: 

 

 Risk 2: Being unable to maximise economic opportunities and resolve 
infrastructure issues; and 

 Risk 10: Development Programme. 
 

 
3. AVAILABLE OPTIONS 
 
3.1 There is no legal requirement on the authority formally to monitor its risks, still 

less is there a defined framework to do so.  Although failing to monitor and 
record risks will leave the Council vulnerable to external criticism – for example 
by its external auditors who are required to assess the effectiveness of risk 
management when considering their annual Value For Money conclusion – the 
Council could decide that is a price worth paying against using some of its 
resources to identify and monitor risk. 
 

3.2 Even accepting the utility in gathering systematic monitoring information on the 
risks it faces, there is a wide range of different approaches the Council might 
adopt.  Even if one looks solely at the local government sector, there are myriad 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6(A)



 

formats, structures and arrangements adopted to record and present 
information to senior officers and members. 

 

 
4. PREFERRED OPTION AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 The report sets out the risks using the methodology and format previously 

agreed by the Council, which is essentially the method advocated by Zurich 
from the 2013 risk workshop. 

 

 

5. CONSULTATION RESULTS AND PREVIOUS COMMITTEE FEEDBACK 
 
5.1 The Strategic Risk Register has undergone periodic review and examination by 

the Council’s Management Board, the Cabinet and the Audit & Governance 
Committee.  This stands in addition to ongoing monitoring by the identified risk 
owners.  This report incorporates feedback and updates from all sources. 

 

 
6. CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS 
 
 

Issue Implications Sign-off 

(name of officer 
and date) 

Legal including 
Human Rights Act 

None identified at this stage. Lee Colyer, 
Director of 
Finance, Policy 
and Development 

 

Finance and other 
resources 

None identified at this stage. 

Staffing 
establishment 

None identified at this stage. 

Risk management   Risk management is the subject of the report but 
it does not of itself raise new risk issues for 
consideration. 

Environment  
and sustainability 

None identified at this stage. 

Community safety None identified at this stage. 

Health and Safety None identified at this stage. 

Health and 
wellbeing 

None identified at this stage. 

Equalities None identified at this stage. 

 
  

Page 9

Agenda Item 6(A)



 

 
7. REPORT APPENDICES 
 
The following document is to be published with this report and forms part of the 
report: 

 Appendix A: Strategic Risk Register Update September 2017 
 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
None 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6(A)



Strategic Risk Update September 2017 
 

The Strategic Risk Profile chart below shows each risk scored onto the risk matrix graph. The 
further towards the top right hand corner the greater the risk to the Council. This is a dynamic 
and not always linear process; circumstances could mean changes in direction, identification 
of new risks or existing risks becoming resolved. The chart below provides only a snapshot 
on a particular date. 
 
The risk scenarios are: 
 

 CSR01: Cinema site remains undeveloped 

 CSR02: Unable to maximise economic opportunities and resolve infrastructure issues 

 CSR03: Resident engagement 

 CSR04: Unable to plan financially over the longer term 

 CSR05: National policy changes in short term impact negatively on TWBC and direction 

 CSR06: Service interruption 

 CSR07: Unable to meet expectations within resources 

 CSR08: Inspector decision which challenges housing targets versus housing supply 

 CSR09: Not managing control and change effectively 

 CSR10: Development programme 

 
 
 
 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 

6 

    

CSR 05 

  
  

Likelihood 

6 = Very High 
5 = High 
4 = Significant 
3 = Low 
2 = Very Low 
1 = Minimal 

5 

    

CSR 02 
CSR 07 
CSR 10 

  
  

4 

  

  
CSR 04 
CSR 06 
CSR 08 

  
  

Impact 

4 = Major 
3 = Severe 
2 = Medium 
1 = Negligible 

3 

  

  
CSR 01 
CSR 03 
CSR 09 

  
  

2 

        
   

1 

        
   

  

1 2 3 4 

   

  

Impact 

   

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Strategic Risk Profile September 2017 

Page 11

Appendix A



The table below tracks movement in the identified strategic risk areas since initial approval by Cabinet in April 2014.  

 
Risk 
 Ref 

Title Dec. 2016 May 2017 July 2017 
September 

2017 
Trend 

CSR 01 Cinema site remains undeveloped. 
12 12 9 9 


(4 x Lk, 3 x Im) (4 x Lk, 3 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

CSR 02 
Unable to maximise economic opportunities 
and resolve infrastructure issues. 

15 15 15 15 


(5 x Lk, 3 x Im) (5 x Lk, 3 x Im) (5 x Lk, 3 x Im) (5 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

CSR 03 Resident engagement. 
9 9 9 9 


(3 x Lk, 3 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

CSR 04 
Unable to plan financially over the longer 
term. 

12 12 12 12 


(4 x Lk, 3 x Im) (4 x Lk, 3 x Im) (4 x Lk, 3 x Im) (4 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

CSR 05 
National policy changes in short term impact 
negatively on TWBC and direction. 

18 18 18 18 


(6 x Lk, 3 x Im) (6 x Lk, 3 x Im) (6 x Lk, 3 x Im) (6 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

CSR 06 Service Interruption 
  8 12 12 


  (4 x Lk, 2 x Im) (4 x Lk, 3 x Im) (4 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

CSR 07 
Unable to meet expectations within 
resources. 

15 15 15 15 


(5 x Lk, 3 x Im) (5 x Lk, 3 x Im) (5 x Lk, 3 x Im) (5 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

CSR 08 
Inspector decision which challenges housing 
targets vs housing supply. 

12 12 12 12 


(4 x Lk, 3 x Im) (4 x Lk, 3 x Im) (4 x Lk, 3 x Im) (4 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

CSR 09 Not managing control and change effectively. 
12 12 9 9 


(4 x Lk, 3 x Im) (4 x Lk, 3 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

CSR 10 Development programme. 
15 15 15 15 


(5 x Lk, 3 x Im) (5 x Lk, 3 x Im) (5 x Lk, 3 x Im) (5 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

 
 

P
age 12

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 1: Cinema site remains undeveloped 
 

 
Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact Low(3) / Severe(3) 

Cinema Site 

Member Risk 

Owner 

David Jukes Officer Risk Owner Karen Fossett 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 The Cinema site has a significant impact 
on the overall perception and reputation 
of Tunbridge Wells. Resolving the lack of 

progress on this site is not wholly within 
the Council’s control 

 

 Damage to reputation 

 Curtails attractiveness and 
discourages new investment in 

the town centre 

 

 

 Following constructive pre-application 

meetings, a detailed planning application for 

the development of the former cinema site 

has been received and validated on 12 July 

2017. A decision by the Planning Committee 

is expected to take place in the Autumn of 

2017. 

P
age 13

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 2: Being unable to maximise economic opportunities and resolve infrastructure issues   

 
Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact High (5) / Severe (3) 

Economic development and 

infrastructure 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Jane March/Alan 

McDermott 

Officer Risk Owner David Candlin 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 There are economic opportunities but other 
areas are also chasing these. 

 The local economic offer and reputation is 
strong and improving with latent demand, 
particularly in retail and ‘in town’ while the 
Council has developed wider Borough 
opportunities, e.g. North Farm. 

 There are issues around cost of housing and 
infrastructure, particularly traffic congestion 
which could affect ability to make the most of 
opportunities. 

 Referendum (‘Brexit’) decision to leave the 
European Union. The implications of this 
decision have the potential to have a 
significant impact on the local economy. 

 Lose out to other areas 

 Unable to secure sufficient 
opportunities 

 Local area and people lose out 

 Insufficient inward investment 

 Impact on economic vitality of area 

 Curtails attractiveness 

 Impact on revenue streams and 
income 

 Suffer in comparison to others 

 Damage to reputation 

 

 Delivery by Highways Agency of A21 Tonbridge to 
Pembury dualling 

 Delivery of North Farm infrastructure improvements 

 Secure KMEP and SELEP support for delivery of key 
infrastructure improvements 

 Maintain and develop working relationships with key 
partners, landowners & developers 

 Establishment of Royal Tunbridge Wells Together town 
centre partnership 

 Ensure Local Plan and Transport Strategy address 
economic & transport issues 

 Professional advice secured to establish viability of 
transport schemes 

 Monitor Brexit negotiations and terms impacting on the 
local economy and business sectors in the Borough 

 Lobby with partners and stakeholders (including 
SELEP) to minimise negative impact of Brexit terms 

 Development programme and support for community 
facilities in the rural towns 

  

P
age 14

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 3: Resident engagement 
 

Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact Low (3) / Severe (3) 

Local engagement 

Member Risk 

Owner 

David Jukes Officer Risk Owner William Benson 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 As a result of the significant financial 
pressures it is experiencing, the Council 

has discontinued a number of the 
mechanisms it has used to engage with 
residents including Ward Walks and 

annual residents’ surveys. 

 Local engagement is crucial in place-

shaping and future direction. There is a 
need to ensure mechanisms are in place 

to ensure that decisions are grounded in 
empirical evidence. 

 

 Direction and decisions out of 
line with public opinion 

 Impact on key areas, e.g. 
growth or economic 
development 

 Directing resources to wrong 
areas, potentially away from 

areas of most need 

 

 The Council has set up a number of 
forums/advisory groups representing parish 

councils, residents, retailers and businesses. 

 The Council has undertaken a Borough-wide 
survey. 

 The Council makes proactive use of social 
media both to listen and to engage with 

residents. 

 The Council has engaged comprehensively as 

part of the process of updating the Five Year 
Plan and will continue to engage on the various 
significant projects contained within it. 

 

P
age 15

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 4: Unable to plan financially over the longer term  

 
Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact Significant (4) /Severe (3) 

Longer Term Financial Planning 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Cllr David Reilly Officer Risk Owner Lee Colyer 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in 

place 

 Core Government funding has reduced significantly in 

favour of incentive based schemes reliant on growth. 

 The Government have offered a four year funding 
settlement from 2016/17 which would result in all 

Revenue Support Grant (£1.6 million) disappearing. 

 Negative grant is still a possibility in 2019/20. 

 The New Homes Bonus scheme has been significantly 
diluted with the first 200 homes not being eligible.  

 The Infrastructure Bill transferred the statutory 

responsibility for Land Charges to the Land Registry. This 
will substantially reduce the Council’s income and write-

off the investment in technology and performance in this 
area. There is also a risk to the public and local 
businesses as national government computer projects 

have a poor track record of delays, budget overspends 
and delivering expected outcome. 

 The Local Government Finance Bill ‘fell’ with the snap 
election and has not been reintroduced as part of the 
Queen’s Speech. Local Government is awaiting 

clarification of what this means for the policy of letting 
local government retain 100 per cent of business rates 

income by 2020.  

 Reactive decision making and 

budgeting rather than 
planning 

 Short term perspective 

reinforced 

 Central control of fees, 

burdens the Council Tax payer 
rather than the user of the 
service 

 Impact on decisions 

 Unpredictability and trust 

 Resources and staffing 
reduced or redeployed 

 Impact on staff retention 

 Credibility damaged 

 Impact on partnership 

working 

 Missed opportunities to 
collaborate 

 Appeals wipe out any growth 
with no new funding flowing 

to the Council 

 Revenue budget balanced 

without the use of general 
reserves 

 MTFS has manageable deficits 

 The Council has accepted the 
four year funding offer 

 The Council has less exposure to 
changes to government funding 
such as Revenue Support Grant 

and New Homes Bonus 

 ‘User Pays’ principle to recover 

costs where allowable 

 Government has provided more 
flexibility surrounding Council 

Tax income, and a review of 
planning fees and licensing fees 

is underway 
 Raising awareness of the impact 

of appeals on local tax payers 

 Pushing for change in the way 
legislation excludes the Council 

from understanding how the 
Valuation Office Agency settles 
appeals. 

P
age 16

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 5:  National policy changes in short term that impact negatively on TWBC and on direction 
 

Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact Very High (6) / Severe (3) 

Central government policy changes 

Member Risk 

Owner 

David Jukes Officer Risk Owner William Benson 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 The past few years have been 
characterised by significant changes to 

the public sector environment and the 
regulations that govern it.  

 The recent general election and the 

return of a minority government has 
placed further uncertainty over reforms 

to finance (including the proposed 
review of needs and Business Rates) 

and the recent push towards ‘devolution 
deals’. 

 On 23 June 2016, the United Kingdom 

of Great Britain and Northern Ireland 
voted to leave the European Union. The 

impacts of this decision have the 
potential to be significant but at this 
time it is difficult to quantify how this 

will affect this Council’s ability to plan 
and deliver its priorities. 

 Changes to external 
environment in which TWBC 

operates 

 Unpredictability and frequent 
changes required to Council 

operations 

 Increased costs/reduced 

income 

 

 Flexibility encouraged amongst staff 

 Partnership working presents opportunities to 

collaborate on service delivery and address 
constraints on capacity 

 Ongoing discussions with KCC and neighbouring 

councils to explore opportunities for aligning or 
devolving services 

 Engagement with the LGA and central 
government 

 Proactive work with representative bodies 

 Further reports will come before members as 
the implications of BREXIT become clearer 

 

P
age 17

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 6:  Service interruption 

 
Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact High (4) / Severe (3) 

The ability to deliver services is 

disrupted 

Member Risk 

Owner 

David Jukes Officer Risk Owner  Denise Haylett 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ Consequences Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 Increased threat from cyber 

security attacks 

 Increased frequency of extreme 
weather   

 Increased threats from terrorism 

 Fire and other major events 

 

 Interruption to critical services 

 Staff being pulled in different 
directions 

 Claims/Legal action/Compensation 

 Adverse publicity  

 National and local reputation 

affected 

 Financial loss 

 Exposure to fraud, ransom and 

denial of service 

 The scale of the disaster could 

overwhelm the Council resulting in 
resignations, community discord and 
questions on whether the 

Government should intervene on 
how the Council is run. 

 Business Continuity Plan 

 Major Emergency Plan 

 Resilience through partnership working 

 Part of the Multi-Agency Agreement 

 Member of the Kent Resilience Forum 

 Designation of a Senior Information Risk Officer 

 Public Service Network accreditation 

 Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards 
(PCI DSS) compliance 

 Support from the National Centre for Cyber 
Security (part of GCHQ) 

 Review of Emergency Planning arrangements 

 

P
age 18

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 7: Being unable to meet expectations within resources  
 

Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact High (5) / Severe (3) 

Reduced resources/increased demands 

and expectations 

Member Risk 

Owner 

David Jukes Officer Risk Owner   William Benson 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 The Council has reduced staff numbers 
and resources but is more ambitious 

with more priorities and is seeking to do 
more than before.  

 The local community is vocal, 
demanding and articulate with 
significant expectations. 

 

 Increased stress and strain 

 Impact on morale 

 Reliance on key and fewer 
people 

 Services/staff are stretched 

 Impact on service quality 

 Satisfaction diminished 

 Campaigns launched by local 
community 

 Adverse publicity 

 Resources required to respond 
to campaigns 

 Damage to reputation 

 

 Reduced number of priorities in strategic plan 

 Regular consideration by Management Board of 

resources; additional resources put in place to 
support priorities (including additional resources 

recently agreed to support the Council’s property 
section) 

 Introduction of a Programme Management Office 

to oversee priority projects 

 Appropriate use of external capacity and expertise 

 Performance monitoring helps to identify pressure 
points 

 Regular sickness monitoring 

 Quarterly analysis and reporting of complaints 
identifying any trends 

 Identifying resilience through partnerships 

 Adopting an “enabling” approach to encourage 
community to deliver local services 

 

P
age 19

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 8:  Inspector decision which challenges housing target vs housing supply 
 

Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact   Significant (4) / Severe (3) 

Housing target/supply 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Alan McDermott Officer Risk Owner Karen Fossett 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ Consequences Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 There has been a change in housing 
formula towards growth. There is 

resistance to housing growth locally with 
a difference between housing target and 
housing supply levels. 

 The statutory revision to the method of 
calculating housing need, “Objectively 

Assessed Need” (OAN) indicates that the 
Borough’s need is more than doubled. 
Whilst this is before consideration is 

given to reductions because of 
constraints this effectively means that 

policies limiting development to within 
the limits of built development fall away. 

 The risk of appeals has increased. 

 

 Council lose control of situation 

 Increase in level of housing on 

greenfield sites 

 Member and community dissatisfaction 

 Increased traffic congestion 

 Impact on infrastructure 

 Financial benefit of planned growth – 

opportunity impact 

 Significant new costs to support 
production of new Core Strategy/Local 

Plan 

 Potential significant appeal related costs 

following refusal of major residential 
development 

 Planning by appeal potentially leading to 

loss of New Homes Bonus  

 Potential legal fees/officer costs/loss of 

section 106 

 Work on a new Local Plan is progressing 
to a compressed timescale 

 Regular reporting to Planning Policy 
Working Group/Cabinet member/ 
Planning Committee on risk and 

legislative changes 

 Consideration by the Constitution Review 

Working Party of application call-ins, 
supported at Audit and Governance 
Committee; this was agreed at Full 

Council on 26 July 2017 

 Site Allocations document found sound by 

independent inspector in 2016 

 Consultation completed on Issues and 
Options document for new Local Plan 

 Call for sites attracted 150 new 
submissions for assessment during 2017. 

 Complete draft of new Local Plan 
expected to be due for further 
consultation in Spring 2018. 

 

 

P
age 20

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 9:  Not managing control and change effectively – Staff, Management, and Political 
 

Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact Low (3)/ Severe (3) 

 Shared Services – control and change  

Member Risk 

Owner 

David Jukes Officer Risk Owner William Benson 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 The Council is involved in joint service 
arrangements around a number of 

service areas (most notably Mid Kent 
Services). 

 Managerial responsibility for these 

services is largely within other 
authorities which limits control of the 

services and their ability to contribute 
towards ‘corporate’ initiatives (such as 

emergency planning). 

 Opportunities for partnership working 
and devolution are being explored with 

neighbouring councils and KCC but this 
is on a different geographic footprint to 

Mid Kent Service. 

 

 Staff dissatisfaction/loss of 
goodwill 

 Service delivery affected 

 Strain on people working in 
partnership 

 Impact felt by wider 
organisation 

 Political dissatisfaction 

 

 MKS is overseen by both a Board and shared 
service boards. 

 The operation of the ‘client side’ has been 
strengthened through ‘shared service boards’ and 
regular performance reporting. 

 The overarching governance arrangements have 
been reviewed and updated as have the individual 

collaboration agreements for each shared service.  

 A Mid Kent Services Director post has been 

created to provide a greater sense of direction and 
‘esprit de corps’ within Mid Kent Services. 

 Reviews will be undertaken of the implementation 

of shared services to learn lessons. 

 

P
age 21

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 10:  Development Programme 
 

Risk Description:  Likelihood/Impact High (5) / Severe(3) 

Development Programme 

Member Risk 

Owner 

David Jukes Officer Risk Owner David Candlin 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ 

Consequences 

Current Controls/ Mitigations in place 

 The Council has identified a number of 
development opportunities to support the 
growth of the local economy. 
 

 Development of these Council owned sites is 
to be led by the Council, which brings 
additional financial and property risks. 

 

 

 

 

 

 Impact on revenue streams and 
income 

 Damage to reputation 

 Insufficient professional expertise 

 Procurement and issues of delay 

 Economic climate 

 Development Advisory Panel (DAP) to review and 
inform all civic development and community 
programmes 

 Programme Board established to oversee and monitor 
progress on all development and transformation projects 

 Officer Groups for the civic, development and 
community programmes, established to manage and 
control the programmes  

 Professional advice sought to establish viability and 
support delivery of Council civic, development and 
community programme schemes   

 Utilisation of framework agreements where appropriate 
to manage procurement timetables 

 Specific risk logs developed for each development site 
and monitored by DAP and officer groups 

 Staged approvals for development progress to manage 
cost exposure and risk 

 Appointment of additional professional staff to enhance 
in-house experience 

 
 
 

 
 

P
age 22

A
ppendix A



 

Audit & Governance 
Committee 

12 September 
2017 

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting? Yes 

 

Independent Review of the Civic Development 
Project 

 

Final Decision-Maker Audit & Governance Committee 

Portfolio Holder(s)  All 

Lead Director  Lee Colyer – Director of Finance, Policy and 
Development  

Head of Service David Candlin – Head of Economic Development 
and Property 

Lead Officer/Report Author Lee Colyer – Director of Finance, Policy and 
Development  

Classification Non-Exempt 

Wards affected All 

  

This report makes the following recommendation to the final decision-maker: 
 

1. That the Committee notes the approach to be taken in obtaining an independent 
assessment of the Civic Development Project. 

 

  

This report relates to the following Five Year Plan Key Objectives: 

 A Prosperous Borough 

 A Green Borough 

 A Confident Borough 

 

This report is concerned with the internal control and governance of the Council.  Successful 
controls and effective governance are a crucial underpinning for all corporate priorities. 

  

Timetable  

Meeting Date 

Management Board 30 August 2017 

Finance & Governance Portfolio-holder 5 September 2017 

Audit and Governance Committee 12 September 2017 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6(B)



 

Independent Review of the Civic Development 
Project 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report sets out the approach being undertaken to independently review the 

Civic Development Project to the end of the Royal Institute of British Architects 
(RIBA) Plan of Work Stage 3 (Developed Design). 

 
1.2 The independent assurance will take the form of two separate pieces of work 

namely: 
 

 A review of the approach to project management of the civic development to 
be undertaken by Mid Kent Audit; and 

 

 An Independent Assessment of the Civic Development Business case to be 
undertaken by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA). 
 

1.3 The outcome of these two reviews will form part of the Stage 3 decision-making 
report pack which will be taken through the Council’s governance process, 
leading to a final decision at Full Council on 6 December 2017.  

 

 
2. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Council has a vision as part of its Five Year Plan to provide a new theatre 

for the town along with new office and civic facilities. The Council has identified 
the sites in its ownership next to Calverley Grounds as the most suitable 
location for the development which will also include a new underground car 
park.  

 
2.2 The Council has been following the industry standard RIBA Plan of Work and at 

each key Stage decisions have been taken by Full Council to continue with the 
project. A dedicated website has been created that includes all the decision-
making material and further information on what is planned, 
http://www.twciviccentre.co.uk/ 

 
2.3 The completion of RIBA Stage 3 is an important milestone and an ideal point at 

which to seek independent views to help inform decision-makers prior to 
progressing further with the project. 

 

2.4 Under the Council’s Constitution the Audit and Governance Committee forms 
part of the regulatory framework with responsibility to monitor corporate 
governance and risk management.  

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 6(B)

http://www.twciviccentre.co.uk/


 

2.5 This report provides the Committee with the opportunity to comment on the 
approach to obtaining independent assurance on the Civic Development 
Project. 

 

2.6 Following the completion of the independent reviews it is planned to bring the 
reports back to the Audit and Governance Committee in November 2017 for 
further consideration. It is important to understand that the remit of the 
Committee is just concerned with governance and not with policy or decision-
making of the Council.     

 
Mid Kent Audit Brief  

 
2.7 A summary of the brief is shown below: 
 

 Complete a project management health-check on the civic complex project, to 
include: 

- Is there clear and appropriate project methodology in place? 
- Is there a detailed project plan, which includes a comprehensive task list with 

reasonable time allocated to each task? 
- Is there a risk register in place for the project? 
- Are roles and responsibilities for project management clearly defined? 
- Is the level of responsibility and extent of role required of each individual 

deliverable alongside his or her wider role? 
- Have individuals with key responsibilities on the project sufficient 

understanding and experience in those roles? 
- Do we have the full scope of the project represented at Board level? 
- Has anything been undertaken before and, if so, have we investigated and 

understood the lessons?  
- Have we sought independent assurance on the project management? 

 

 Document and evaluate the adequacy of financial controls over the 
development programme fund/budget. 
 

CIPFA Assessment Brief 
 

2.8 A summary of the brief is shown below: 
 

 To provide independent assurance on the key financial assumptions 
underpinning the overall scheme; 

 To provide independent assurance on the planned financial governance; 

 Ensure completeness of reports to members to reflect fairly the advice of the 
Council’s retained cost consultants; 

 Review the funding strategy and schedule of income and savings initiatives; 

 Test the robustness of the funding strategy; 

 Test and explore alternative contingency planning; and 

 Review, test and offer advice to the statutory officers on the planned 
approach to financial governance over the life of the scheme.  

 

  

Page 25

Agenda Item 6(B)



 

3. AVAILABLE OPTIONS 
 

3.1 The Committee is being asked to consider and note the above independent 
review briefs.  

 

 

4. PREFERRED OPTION AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 

4.1 The report seeks to inform the Committee of the approach for obtaining 
independent views on the Civic Development Project.    

 

 

5. CONSULTATION RESULTS AND PREVIOUS COMMITTEE FEEDBACK 
 
5.1 At the meeting on 25 July 2017 it was agreed that the independent review briefs 

would be shared with the Committee.  
 

 

6. CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS 
 
 

Issue Implications Sign-off 

(name of officer 
and date) 

Legal including 
Human Rights Act 

None identified at this stage. Lee Colyer, 
Director of 
Finance, Policy 
and Development 

 

Finance and other 
resources 

None identified at this stage. 

Staffing 
establishment 

None identified at this stage. 

Risk management   Risk management is the subject of the report but 
it does not of itself raise new risk issues for 
consideration. 

Environment  
and sustainability 

None identified at this stage. 

Community safety None identified at this stage. 

Health and Safety None identified at this stage. 

Health and 
wellbeing 

None identified at this stage. 

Equalities None identified at this stage. 

 
7. REPORT APPENDICES 
 

None 
 

 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 

None 

Page 26

Agenda Item 6(B)



 

 

Audit & Governance 
Committee 

12 September 2017 

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting? Yes 

 

External Auditor Appointment Update 
 

Final Decision-Maker Audit and Governance Committee 

Portfolio Holder(s)  Councillor David Reilly – Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Governance 

Lead Director  Lee Colyer – Director of Finance, Policy and Development 
(S151 Officer) 

Head of Service Rich Clarke – Head of Audit Partnership 

Lead Officer/Author Rich Clarke – Head of Audit Partnership 

Classification Non-exempt 

Wards affected All 

  

This report makes the following recommendations to the final decision-maker: 

 

1. That the Committee notes the proposal of PSAA for Grant Thornton to continue as 
the Council’s external auditor; and 

2. That the Committee directs the Director of Finance, Policy and Development (S151 
Officer) to respond to PSAA’s consultation, considering comments from members. 

  

This report relates to the following Five Year Plan Key Objectives: 

 A Prosperous Borough 

 A Green Borough 

 A Confident Borough 

 

This report concerns governance of the Council.  Effective governance underpins all 
corporate priorities. 

 

  

Timetable  

Meeting Date 

Audit and Governance Committee 12 September 2017 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6(C)



 

External Audit Procurement Update 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report builds on previous presentations to this Committee, summarised 

and linked below: 
 

 26 July 2016 (AG22/16): Introductory report setting out the different 
approaches with the Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 for local 
authorities to appoint their external auditors. 

 20 September 2016 (AG33/16): Further report including research on 
the plans of other local authorities.  The Committee resolved following 
this report to recommend the Council opted-in to PSAA’s joint 
procurement arrangement. 

 Verbal updates provided to the Committee in April, June and July 2017, 
summarising PSAA’s progress against its procurement timetable. 

 
1.2 On 15 August PSAA told the Council it was proposing that Grant Thornton 

continue as the Council’s external auditors. 
 

1.3 This report serves to update members and canvass any views that might 
shape the Council’s response to the proposal. 

 

 
2. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 abolished the Audit Commission 

and directed local authorities to appoint their own external auditors before 31 
December 2017.  The Act also created a category of ‘approved persons’ able 
to manage procurement for authorities who choose to opt in to that path. The 
Department of Communities & Local Government approved Public Sector 
Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Local 
Government Association, to act as an ‘approved person’ and invite local 
authorities to opt in. 

2.2 On 7 December 2016 the Full Council decided (FC52/16) to opt in to PSAA’s 
procurement arrangement.  All but one district council in England took the 
same decision meaning PSAA effectively ran a single national procurement 
exercise. 

2.3 PSAA have largely kept to the procurement timetable and approach advised to 
the Council in 2016.  This approach awarded national contracts divided on the 
volume of audit work on offer, with a second step following to assign auditors 
to individual authorities. On 22 June 2017 PSAA announced the results of its 
national exercise. 

  

Page 28

Agenda Item 6(C)

http://democracy.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/meetings/documents/s28264/Item%205C%20-%20External%20auditor%20procurement.pdf
http://democracy.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/meetings/documents/s29038/Item%208B%20-%20External%20auditor%20procurement.pdf


 

 

Lot Value Percentage Winner 

1 £14.6m 40% Grant Thornton LLP 

2 £10.9m 30% EY LLP (Ernst & Young) 

3 £6.6m 18% Mazars LLP 

4 £2.2m 6% BDO LLP 

5 £2.2m 6% Deloitte LLP 

6 No set value N/A 
Moore Stephens LLP/Scott-Moncrieff 

LLP Consortium 

 

2.4 The overall value of the award suggests an average decrease in audit fees of 
18% compared to 2016/17.  However, the specific fees for individual 
authorities will be subject to separate consultation in early 2018. 

2.5 PSAA then began to assign work to individual authorities in line with these 
overall values.  On 15 August 2017 PSAA told the Council of its proposal to 
appoint Grant Thornton as the Council’s external auditor from the 2018/19 
financial year on a five year contract with a potential two year extension.   

2.6 Grant Thornton are the Council’s current external auditors and have held that 
role since the Audit Commission shed its audit arm in 2012.  It is understood 
that Grant Thornton are also the proposed auditors for Maidstone and Swale 
Borough Councils. 

2.7 The appointment only covers work directed by the National Audit Office’s 
Code of Audit Practice.  This covers most of external audit’s current work, for 
example the accounts and value for money opinions.  The most notable 
omission is certification of the Council’s Housing Benefit Claim form, which it 
must provide to the Department of Work and Pensions by 30 November each 
year.  The Council will consider arrangements for that appointment soon, and 
must tell DWP of its decision on that matter by 28 February 2018. 

 

 
3. AVAILABLE OPTIONS 
 
3.1 The Council may object to PSAA’s proposal to appoint Grant Thornton.  PSAA 

give only limited grounds for objection: 

 An independence issue that has not previously been notified to PSAA, 

 Formal joint working arrangements with another authority that are both 
relevant to the auditor’s responsibilities and not previously notified to 
PSAA, 

 Another valid reason, for example a history of inadequate service. 

3.2 We believe the Council has no valid grounds under these headings to raise an 
objection to the proposed appointment. 

 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6(C)



 

4. PREFERRED OPTION AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 In previous meetings members have reported a preference to minimise the 

disruption arising from a change in external auditors.  Officers have echoed 
this preference, noting that they enjoy a strong and professional working 
relationship with Grant Thornton. 

 
4.2 So, the Council is expected to welcome PSAA’s proposal that Grant Thornton 

continue as its external auditors and respond affirmatively.  It is also noted, as 
expected given their current role, there are no conflicts of interest with Grant 
Thornton that would exclude their continuing as external auditors. 

 

 
5. CONSULTATION RESULTS AND PREVIOUS COMMITTEE FEEDBACK 
 
5.1 Previous discussions on this topic have been considered in compiling this 

report. 
 

 
6. NEXT STEPS: COMMUNICATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 

DECISION 
 

6.1 The Council must respond to PSAA by 22 September 2017.  If the Council 
confirms its satisfaction with the proposed appointment no further action needs 
to be taken.  PSAA will confirm the Tunbridge Wells BC appointment, with 
appointments for all opted-in authorities, at its board meeting on 14 December 
2017.  PSAA will write with final confirmation of appointments by 21 December 
2017, so meeting the statutory deadline of 31 December. 

 

6.2 If the Council wishes to object to the proposed appointment, PSAA will 
consider the authority’s reasons.  If PSAA accept those reasons they will 
respond by 27 October 2017 with an alternative proposal.  The Council must 
accept that alternative proposal or opt out of joint procurement which will leave 
little time to set up its own arrangements. 

 

6.3 PSAA will embark on a separate consultation on audit fee scales early in the 
new year. 

 

 
7. CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS 
 
This report is provided for information rather than decision and consequently raises no new 
issues or implications. 
 

 

Issue Implications Sign-off 

Legal including 
Human Rights 
Act 

Not applicable 
 

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 6(C)



 

 
 

8. REPORT APPENDICES 
 
The following documents are to be published with and form part of the report: 
 
None 
 

 
9. BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 

The report builds on previous information provided to the Committee. That 
information has been linked within this report. 

 

 

Finance and 
other resources 

Not applicable  

Staffing 
establishment 

Not applicable 
 

 

Risk 
management   

Not applicable 
 

 

Environment  
and sustainability 

Not applicable 
 

 

Community 
safety 

 

Not applicable 
 

 

Health and Safety Not applicable 
 

 

Health and 
wellbeing 

Not applicable 
 

 

Equalities Not applicable 
 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6(C)



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 (and part of 2018/19) 

REPORT TITLE 12/9/17 21/11/17 30/1/18 
(prov.) 

3/4/18 23/05/18 17/7/18 
(prov.) 

Audit and Governance 
Committee Annual Report 
 

      

Annual Internal Audit  
Report and Opinion 
 

     X 

Internal Audit and 
Assurance Plan 
 

   X   

Internal Audit Interim 
Report  
 

 X     

Annual Audit Letter 
 

 X     

External Audit Plan 
 

   X   

External Audit Progress 
Report 
 

 X     

Planned Audit Fee 
 

     X 

Financial Report and 
Audit Findings 2017/18 
 

     X 

Annual Complaints Report 
and Local Government 
Ombudsman Annual 
Review 
 

 X     

Update on Member 
Complaints 
 

X X  X  X 

Strategic Risk Review 
(incorporating Annual Risk 
Management Summary in 
June) 
  

 X  X  X 

Attendance of Strategic 
Risk Owners 
 

X X  X  X 

Appointment of members 
to Constitution Review 
Working Party 
 

    X  

Proposed changes to the 
Constitution 
 

      

Update on procurement of 
an external auditor 

X X     

Briefings/member 
development  
 

X      

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 (and part of 2018/19) 

 
 

Page 34

Agenda Item 7


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6(A) Strategic Risk Review
	Item 6(A) - Strategic risk review September 2017 - Appendix A

	6(B) Independent Review of the Civic Development Project
	6(C) External Auditor Appointment - Update
	7 Future Work Programme

